UNITED STATES OFAMERICA

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20580

Office of he Secretary

Januay 21, 2010

Sandra FBraunstein, Diretor

Division of Consumer and Communi@ffairs
Boad of Govenors of theFederd ReserveSystem
Washington, D.C. 20551

Dea Ms. Braunstein:

This letter reponds to gur request for infomation concming the Felerd Trade
Commssion’s (“Commission” or “FC”) enforcement ativiti es réated to complianceith the
Truth in Lending(“TILA”"), Consumer kasing(“CLA”"), Equal Credit Opportunitf’ECOA"),
and Eletronic Fund Transér Acts (“BFTA”) (collectively“the Ads”) for use in prepang the
Fedad Resave Boad's (“theBoad’) 2009 Annud Report to Congress. Speifically, you ask
for information concmingthe FTC’s administration and enfoement of the Ads, as well as
c@Boplthwdéw ork with the Conmission in thefuture to

analyze the dataaportingrequirenents associatiewith section 502(edf the Crelit CARD Act of
2009, which rguires provision of mnual information to the @ard doout supervisorgand
enforcemant activities relate to crelit card issues’ compliancewith Fedeal consumer protetion
requirenents> You indicate thiathis new requinment mayaffect the tpe of daéa that the
Commssion collects fromrdities under its jurisdiction and that the FTC will be asteeprovide

! The FTC erforces the Acts for mostnonbankenitiesin the United Sates The Commission doesnot collect
data regarding the extent of compliance by the numerous non-bank entities within its jurisdiction. As aresult, this
letter doesnot provide informaton on hatissue.

2 SeeThe Credit Cad Accountability Regonsibility and Disclosure Act of 2009 (‘the Credit CARD Act”), Pub.
L. No. 111-24, 123 Stat 1734 (May 22, 2009).



% The Commission aso notes thd it is implementing certain requirements o the Credit CARD Act and is
consuking with the Board an implementng otherprovisionsof thatAct, including those amenithg the TILA andthe
EFTA. TheCommission’s adivitiesrelated © the Credit CARD Act thatare relevent to this reportare desribed
below.

4 Informaion concerning the FTC’s enforcemert and other activitiesdiscussedin this repot also is available on
the Commission’s website & http://www.ftc.gov.

5 During 2009, the Commission did not initiate any enforcement acions dleging violations of the CLA, which is
part of the TILA.

®SeeSection 5 o the FTC Act (15U.S.C. 45(a)(2)). Bona fide nmprofit enities ae exenpt from the
jurisdiction ofthe FTC Act. Pursiar to Sectons4 and 5 othe FTC Act, the Commission has jurisdiction only over
persons, partnerships, o corporations arganized to carry on business fa their profit or that of their members. Seel5
U.SC.44,45@)2). The FTC heas authority to enforcethe TILA only as to entitiesfor which enforcemen hasnot
been canmitted to some ather governrentagency. 15 U.S.C. 1607(c).

" The Commission filed five additional such cases in 2008 for a total of 28 of these cases to date. SeeFEDERAL
TRADE COMM’'N, FEDERAL AND STATE AGENCIES TARGET MORTGAGE RELIEF SCAMS; FTC LEADS “OPERATION
STOLEN HOPE" TO STOP FRAUD AND HELP TROUBLED HOMEOWNERS (Nov. 24, 2009), available at
h@p:/@nD (4)Tj 5.04000.0000T Tla


http://www.ftc.gov.
http://www2.ftc.gov/opa/2009/11/stolenhope.shtm;
http://www.ftc.gov/opa/2009/07/loanlies.shtm

http://www.ftc.gov/opa/2009/05/rescue.shtm; and FEDERAL T



http://www.ftc.gov/opa/2009/05/rescue.shtm
http://www.ftc.gov/opa/2009/04/hud.shtm
http://www.ftc.gov/os/caselist/0823028/index.shtm
http://www.ftc.gov/opa/2009/11/stolenhope.shtm
http://www2.ftc.gov/opa/2008/02/rescue.shtm
http://www.ftc.gov/opa/2009/05/rescue.shtm.

12 The asiggnee @fendants are prdiibited from acceping the asggynmentof anyloan hatincludes anyof the
characeristics prohibited by any of the other provisions in the orders. Someindividual defendarts are baredfrom
trying to collect payments from any consumers for any credit-related product sdd by any of the defendants.

13 Thestipulated final ordes imposea $279 million judgmentagainst other defendarts, which wassuspended
based @ their inahility to pay; however,the full judgmentwill become due immediately if those deéndants are
found to have misrepresented their financial condition.

14 1n the Matter of Michael Gendrolis d/b/a Good Life Funding, Docket No. C-4248 fFed. TradeComm'’n Feb.

17, 2009) (decision and order), available at http://www.ftc.gov/opa/2009/02/fyi0219.shtm; In the Matter of
American Nationwide Mortgage Co., DocketNo. C-4249 (Fed TradeComm’'n Feh 17, 2009) (decision andorder),
available at http://www.ftc.gov/opa/2009/02/fyi0219.shtm; In the Matter of Shiva Venture Group, Inc. d/b/a Innova
Financial Group, Docket No. C-4250 (Fed. Trade Comm’n Feb. 17, 2009) (decision and order), avaiable at
http://www.ftc.gov/opa/2009/02/fyi0219.shtm.



http://www.ftc.gov/opa/2009/02/fyi0219.shtm
http://www.ftc.gov/opa/2009/02/fyi0219.shtm
http://www.ftc.gov/opa/2009/02/fyi0219.shtm.



http://www.ftc.gov/os/caselist/0223287/0223287.shtm.
http://www.ftc.gov/opa/2004/06/chasefinancial.shtm.
http://www.ftc.gov/opa/2009/01/emc.shtm
http://www.ftc.gov/os/caselist/0623031/index.shtm.
http://www2.ftc.gov/opa/2008/09/emc.shtm
http://www.ftc.gov/opa/2009/07/famco.shtm
http://www.ftc.gov/opa/2009/01/emc.shtm
http://www.ftc.gov/famco

19 ETC and State of Nevada v. Cash Today, Ltd., No. 3:08-cv-00590 (D. Nev. Oct. 27,2009) (stipulated final
judgment ertered), available at http://www.ftc.gov/opa/2009/09/cash.shtm. The stipulatedfinal judgmen



http://www.ftc.gov/opa/2009/09/cash.shtm.
http://www1.ftc.gov/opa/2008/11/cashtoday.shtm
http://www.ftc.gov/os/caselist/0523092/index.shtm.
http://www.ftc.gov/opa/2009/11/bluehippo.shtm.
http://www2.ftc.gov/opa/2008/02/bluehippo.shtm.

22 4. (SD.N.Y. Nov. 16, 2009) (show cause mler issued).

23 SeeOmnibus Appropriations Act of 2009 (Omnibus Act”), Pub.L. No. 1118, § 626,123 Sat 524 Mar. 11,
2009), as anended by the Credit CARD Act, § 511, supra note 2.

24 Credit CARD Act, supra note 2.

SeeFeEDERAL TRADE COMM’'N, FTC BEGINS RULEMAKING TO ADDRESSUNFAIR AND


http://www.ftc.gov/90a/2009/05/decepmortgage.shtm
http://www.ftc.gov/opa/2009/05/decepmortgage.shtm.

SeeFEDERAL TRADE CoOMM'N, FTC OFFERSPAY -OFF INFORMATION TO CONSUMERS WITH N


http://www.ftc.gov/opa/2009/04/nonbankcc.shtm
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3! SeeFEDERAL TRADE COMM "N, A NOTE TO HOMEOWNERS, avaiable at
http://www.ftc.gov/bcp/edu/pubs/consumer/homes/real6.shtm; FEDERAL TRADE ComM’'N, UN NOTA PARA LOS
DuEefos be CAsA, available at http://www.ftc.gov/bcp/edu/pubs/consumer/homes/sreal6.shtm; FEDERAL TRADE
ComM’N, A NOTE TO HOMEOWNERS bookmark, available at
http://www.ftc.gov/bcpedupubsconsumerbookmarlks/bmkl3.pdf; and FEDERAL TRADE COMM'N, UN NOTA PARA
Los DuERos be CASA bookmark, available at http://www.ftc.gov/bcpedupubsconsumerbookmarks/sbmkl3 pdf.

32 SeeFEDERAL TRADE COMM'N, MORTGAGE PAYMENTS SENDING Y OU REELING? HERE'S WHAT TO DO,
available at http://www.ftc.gov/bcp/edu/pubs/consumer/homes/rea04.shtm andFEDERAL TRADE COMM'N, ¢ LOS
PAGOS DE $J HIPOTECA LO ESTAN HACIENDO TAMBALEAR? ESTO ES 10 QUE USTED PLEDE HACER, avaiable at
http://www.ftc.gov/bcp/edu/pubs/consumer/homes/srea04.shtim. 4m ComM’'N, USING A 1 vibMIIBIOR2.8400 0.0002s 1.00000 0.00000

33 SeeFEDERAL TRADE CoMM'N, REAL PEOPLE, REAL STORIES: AvOID FORECLOSURE RESCUESCAMS, available
at http://www.ftc.gov/multimedia/video/credit/mortgage/hope-now.shtm.

34 SeeFEDERAL TRADE COMM'N, REVERSEM ORTGAGES GET THE FACTS BEFORE CASHING IN ON YOUR HOME'S
EqQuiTy, available at htto://www Ttc.aov/bep/ecu/puhs/consumer/homss/real3.shkm.

35 SeeFEDERAL TRADE COMM "N, HOUSING COUNSELORS: HOw TO HELP PEOPLE AVOID REVERSEM ORTGAGE
MissTeEPS, available at http://www.ftc.gov/bcp/edu/pubs/business/derts/dt158.shtm.

SeeFeEDERAL TRADE CoMM’'N,UsING A1 1.00002.8400 0.0002s 1.000000.00000 0.00000 1.000000.00000.0000 cr


http://www.ftc.gov/bcp/edu/pubs/consumer/homes/rea16.shtm,
http://www.ftc.gov/bcp/edu/pubs/consumer/homes/srea16.shtm,
http://www.ftc.gov/bcp/edu/pubs/consumer/bookmarks/bmk13.pdf,
http://www.ftc.gov/bcp/edu/pubs/consumer/homes/rea16.shtm,
http://www.ftc.gov/bcp/edu/pubs/consumer/bookmarks/sbmk13.pdf.
http://www.ftc.gov/bcp/edu/pubs/consumer/homes/rea04.shtm
http://www.ftc.gov/bcp/edu/pubs/consumer/homes/srea04.shtm
http://www.ftc.gov/bcp/edu/pubs/consumer/homes/rea13.shtm.
http://www.ftc.gov/bcp/edu/pubs/business/alerts/alt158.shtm.
http://www.ftc.gov/bcp/edu/pubs/consumer/alerts/alt137.shtm.
http://www.ftc.gov/bcp/edu/pubs/consumer/autos/aut03.shtm,
http://www.ftc.gov/bcp/edu/pubs/consumer/autos/saut03.shtm
http://www.ftc.gov/bcp/edu/pubs/consumer/autos/saut11.shtm.

L Howt

39 SeeFEDERAL TRADE COMM'N, RECUPERO DE VEHICULOS. COMPRENDIENDO LAS REGLAS DEL CAMINO,
available at http://www.ftc.gov/bcp/edu/pubs/consumer/autos/sait14.shtm.

40
See


http://www.ftc.gov/bcp/edu/pubs/consumer/autos/saut14.shtm.
http://www.ftc.gov/bcp/consumer.shtm.
http://www.ftc.gov/opa/2009/05/gem.shtm.

42 The FTC s@aff's closing letter in the Homecomings investigation isavailable at
http://www.ftc.gov/os/dosings/090122homecomingfinancialclosingletter. pdf.

SeeFEDERAL TRADE COMM’N, MORTGAGE DISCRIMINATION: A GUIDE TO UNDE



S EFTA and Regulation E apply to debit cards; TILA and Regulation Z apply to credit cards.

4ETC V. In Deep Services, Inc., No. 09-CV-01193 (C.D. Cal. June 23, 2009) (complaint filed), avaiable at
http://www.ftc.gov/opa/2009/07/shortchange.shtm;



http://www.ftc.gov/os/caselist/0923103/index.shtm.
http://www.ftc.gov/opa/2009/07/shortchange.shtm.
http://www.ftc.gov/os/caselist/0923060/index.shtm.
http://www.ftc.gov/os/caselist/0923108/index.shtm.
http://www.ftc.gov/opa/2009/08/grantconnect.shtm.
http://www.ftc.gov/opa/2009/07/shortchange.shtm.
http://www.ftc.gov/os/caselist/0923060/index.shtm.

fee Howeve, deendants kkegedlyfailed to disclosedequatly that the consumsmwere
enrolled automaically in amembaeship program and tha, unless hey canceled the membeship
within seven day, a monthlynembership fe would be barged to their cedit cad or bank
acount.

In all threeof these ne& cases, the complaints alleghat deéndants violated thEFTA
and Regulation E by debiting consumers’ credit card or bank accounts onarecurring basis
without obtaining propewritten aithorization for preathorized electroniéund transérs and
without providing the consumer with a copy of such written authorization. Litigation continues in
all three cases.

The two settlements selved caes broufgt in prior yeas involving the salef dietay
supplement€ In both casg the FTC beged that defndants offred consumersffee” sanples
of dietaly supplements for whita small shippingrad handlingieewould be cheged to the
consumesrs cralit or debit cad. Detndants kegedly automaticallyenrolled onsumers in a
continuity plan for which their credit or debit card was debited each manth. Among other things,
the Commis®n chaged that defndants violated thEFTA and Reglation E bydebiting the
consumersacounts on a raaring basis without obtaining the@ansumers’ witten authorization
for preauthoized electronidund transérs fom the acount. Stipulated final ordemwereenteed
in both cases. Among other things, theorders enjoin defendantsfrom: (1) failingto dotan
written authorization for gauthoized electronidund transérs fom consumes’ accounts befo
initiating such dransfe; (2) failing to maintain pscedues resonablyadapte to avoid an
unintentional failure to obtain thequirel written authorization; and (3) violatiranyprovision
of the EF'A or Regulation E. h NextClick Media, the orde also imposes a $3.4 million
judgment to resdve dl isstes, suspended ypon payment of $315,000 based on defendants
inability to pay.*

B ETC V. Warshak, No. 1:06-cv-00051 (S.D. Ohio July 22, 2009) (stipulated final orders entered), available at
http://www.ftc.gov/os/casdist/berkeley/berkeley.shim; FTC v. NextClick Media, LLC, No. C08-1718 (N.D. Cal.
Nov. 3, 2009) (stipulated final order entered), available at http://www.ftc.gov/opa/2009/11/nextclick.shkm.

* Thefull judgmentwill become duemimediately if defendans are found b hawe misrepresented heir finarcial
condition.

50 Supa note 21.
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http://www.ftc.gov/os/caselist/berkeley/berkeley.shtm
http://www.ftc.gov/os/caselist/0723117/index.shtm.
http://www.ftc.gov/opa/2009/11/nextclick.shtm.

C. Other Initiatives

Title IV of the Credit CARD Act amends the EFTA, dfective Augug 2011, to make it
applicableto generad-use preaid cads, dft cettificates, ad store @t cards> As you know, the
Boad, in consutation with the FTC, is to implement rules mncerning theseEFTA amendments
by Februaly 2010. The Commission’s Divan of Financial Pratices and vision of
Advettising Pratices ae consultingvith the Boad regardingthese ruls.

Section 508 of the Cdit CARD Act require the FTC to condt@ studyregardingthe
cog-effectiveness d making emergency automaed tdler machine (“ATM”) technology available
to permit ATM users undealuress to electronally alett a local lawenfoicement agencythat an
incident is t&king place a the ATM. The Commission’s Bureau of Economics isconducting this
study and drafting areport to Congress.

. SUGGESTIONSFOR CHANGESIN THE ACTSOR THEIR IMPLEMENTING
REGULATIONS

The Commission has no swgggions for chages to the Ats or their implementing
regulations at this the beynd the staftomments refrenced &ove.

The A C hopes that the inforrtian contained in this letter sponds to gur inquiryand
will assist h prepaation of the Bard’s Annual Report to Comgss. flanyother infomation
would be usefl or if you wish to requestdaitional assistance, pleacontat Joel Winsbn,
Associate rector, Division of Finan@l Practics, at (202) 326153.

By diredion of the Commision.

Donald S. Clark
Secreary

%1 Credit CARD Act, supra note 2.
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